
 
 
 

   WORK SESSION  
1. Call Meeting of City Council Work Session to Order 

 
2. Approve Agenda 

2.1 2020 Highway 212 Mill & Overlay Project/Underpass Installation 
 

3. Adjournment 
 
 

 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1. Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Approve Agenda 
2.1 Approve minutes of March 27, 2017 

 
3. Adjournment 

 
 

    

  CITY COUNCIL 
1. Call Meeting of City Council to Order 

 
2. Approve Agenda 

 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment  

(Individuals may address the City Council about any non-agenda item of concern.  Speakers must state their name, address, and limit their remarks to three minutes.  
The City Council will not take official action on these items, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled for a future 
meeting agenda.) 
 

4. Consent Agenda  
(NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: All those items listed as part of the Consent Agenda will be approved by a single motion, unless a request to discuss one of those items is 
made prior to that time.  Anyone present at the meeting may request an item to be removed from the consent agenda.  Please inform the Council when they approve 
the agenda for this meeting.)      

4.1 Approve minutes of April 10, 2017 meeting 
4.2 Approve payment of Claims 
4.3 Accept resignation of Jason Kloempken and authorize posting for full-time Public Service Technician  
4.4 Street Closure – Franklin Street N 

  
5.   Public Hearings 
 5.1   Public Hearing to consider Vacation of part of Liberty Street 
  
6. Old Business 

6.1   Resolution 2017-11, Approving Vacation of part of Liberty Street 
 

7.   New Business 
7.1   Ordinance 286 - Rezoning 120 Morse Street North 
7.2   Ordinance No. 287 - Amendment to allow first floor residential in the C-3, Downtown District  

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 24, 2017 – 6:00 p.m.  

Work Session; followed by EDA / City Council Meetings 
 



7.3   Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Purchase Proposal   
7.4  Willkommen Memorial Park Restrooms Project – Construction Proposals 
7.5   Norwood Sports Complex Zellmann Field – Baseball Dugout Repair Options 

 
8. Council Member & Mayor Reports 
 
9.  Adjournment 
 
The following informational items have been included in the Council packet for informational purposes, Council 
review and discussion.  No action is required by the City Council:   

 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS / EVENTS 
April 27    Special City Council – 7:00 a.m. 
May 2 Planning Commission – 6:00 p.m. 
May 8 City Council – 6:00 p.m.  
May 10 EDC – 6:30 p.m. 
May 11 Senior Advisory Committee – 9:00 a.m. 
May 16  Parks and Rec. Commission – 5:30 p.m. 
May 22 City Council Work Session – 6:00 p.m.; EDA and City Council to follow  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Honorable Mayor Lagergren and City Council Members 
 
FROM:   Steven Helget, City Administrator 
 
DATE:    April 24, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:   2020 Highway 212 Mill & Overlay Project/Underpass Installation    
=============================================================== 

 
Jon Solberg, MnDOT South Area Manager, will be present to review the 2020 Mill and 
Overlay Project for Highway 212.  In addition, Kevin Jullie, SRF Consulting Group, will be 
present to review their feasibility study for the installation of an underpass.  Lastly, I invited 
Kreg Schmidt, Bolton & Menk to be present to provide his input on the underpass installation. 
 
   
 
 
 



City of Norwood Young America – Economic Development Authority Minutes 

March 27, 2017 – 6:00 p.m.  
 

ATTENDEES:   Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Charlie Storms 

CITY STAFF:   City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk Kelly Hayes, Public Service Director Tony Voigt 

OTHERS:   Bill Grundahl, Mark Lagergren, Karla Hormann, Sharilyn Feltmann, Pat Shannahan, Jim  

  Zellmann, Andy Wigfield, Julie Wigfield, Daniel Herst, Todd Miller 
 

1. Call Meeting of Economic Development Authority to Order 

Meeting was called to order by President Carol Lagergren at 6:38pm. 

              1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
      

2. Approve Agenda 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the agenda.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

2.1 Approve minutes of February 27, 2017 

Motion:  Heher to approve the minutes.  Second Storms.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

3. Adjournment 

Motion:  Stolz to adjourn at 6:37pm.  Second McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 

Sincerely Submitted: 

 

        

______________________________________ 

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer  

       ____________________________________ 

       President 

 

 
 



 
 
 
ATTENDEES:   Craig Heher, Carol Lagergren, Mike McPadden, Dick Stolz, Charlie Storms 
CITY STAFF:   City Administrator Steve Helget, City Clerk Kelly Hayes 
OTHERS:   Jeff Hebeisen – Citizens Insurance, JR Hoernemann, Christian Pallansch 
 
 

1. Call Meeting of City Council to Order 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor Carol Lagergren at 6:00pm. 

      1.1   Pledge of Allegiance 
  
2. Approve Agenda 

Change in agenda, remove #10 Closed Meeting. 
Motion:  Stolz to approve the agenda with the change.  Second Storms.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 
3. Introductions, Presentations, Proclamations, Awards, and Public Comment  

Resident Christian Pallansch received a code violation letter regarding his property at 793 Tacoma Blvd.  Christian 
explained the reasoning of the extra vehicles on the property.  He requested extra time to get his property within 
City Code compliance.  The council asked that Mr. Pallansch meet with the City Administrator to figure out a plan 
and timeline.  
 

4.   Consent Agenda      
4.1 Approve minutes of March 27, 2017 meetings 
4.2 Approve payment of claims 
4.3 Accept Sarah Molnau resignation from EDC  
4.4 Approve hiring of Jodi Miller, Custodian 

Motion:  McPadden to approve the consent agenda.  Second Heher.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried.   
 

5.   Public Hearings - none 
       

6. Old Business - none 
 

7. New Business 
7.1   Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Proclamation 

Crystal Dammann gave information regarding the Yellow Ribbon Program on Saturday, May 13, 2017 at 6pm, 
honoring Vietnam War Veterans and taking a closer look at how it affects the community as a whole.  Tickets 
can be purchased at Citizens Bank or Kleinbank until May 9.  Mayor Lagergren read the Beyond the Yellow 
Ribbon Proclamation. 

Motion:  Heher to approve the Yellow Ribbon Proclamation.  Second Stolz.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 

7.2 Property and Liability Insurance Renewal 
Jeff Hebeisen of Citizens Insurance gave an update of the insurance premiums and coverages for the City 
(property, liability, work comp). 
 

At this time, the Council agreed to hear from resident Christian Pallansch (minutes are under #3 for Public Comment).  
  

7.3   Loomis Builders request for Trunk Fees Reduction for Townhomes 
Earlier this year, Loomis Homes requested a reduction in the Trunk Fees for townhomes.  Administrative 
Assistant, Alicia Menzel, contacted Carver County communities near Norwood Young America to find out what 
their fees are for new construction permits (based on a $200,000 home).  Compared to neighboring 
communities, Norwood Young America’s fees are a little higher.  

Motion:  McPadden to schedule a Public Hearing on May 8 to discuss lowering the Water & Sewer Trunk Fees.  Second 
Storms.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

City Council Minutes 
April 10, 2017 – 6:00pm  

City Hall Council Chambers 
 



 
7.4   League of MN Cities Annual Conference 

Motion:  Stolz authorizing two members of the City Council to attend the League of MN Cities Annual Conference.  Second 
McPadden.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 

 
7.5 Schedule Special City Council Meeting 

Personnel Committee will be interviewing for the Public Service Technician position on Wednesday, April 26.  
It is the recommendation of the committee to hold a special meeting to approve hiring the top candidate 
instead of waiting two weeks until the next City Council meeting. 

Motion:  Heher to hold a special meeting on Thursday, April 27, 2017 at 7:00am.  Second Storms.  Vote 5 – 0 Motion carried. 
  

8.   Council Member’s Reports 
Heher:  Planning - Beginning in May, meets will be held the 1

st
 Tuesday of each month at 6:00pm.  Two Planning 

Commissioner positions open, if interested, contact Steve Helget at City Hall. 
 
McPadden:  EDC – has one opening for an Economic Development Commissioner. 

 
Stolz:  Attended a Community Leaders meeting regarding new roads for Minnesota.  There is zero money available from 
the state for new road construction in the metro area for the next 20 years (this includes Highway 212).  

 
Storms:  Park & Rec will be meeting this week.  

 
9.   Mayor’s Report 
Personnel Committee excited to have Jodi Miller join the team as the custodian.  Accepting applications and will be 
interviewing soon for the Public Service Technician position. 
 
MNDot will be at the next Work Session on April 24, 2017 ay 6:00pm. 
 
10. Closed Meeting 

 
      11.  Adjournment 
Motion:  McPadden to adjourn at 7:13pm.  Second Storms.  Vote 5 – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
 

Sincerely Submitted: 
 
        
____________________________________________________ 
Kelly Hayes, City Clerk/Treasurer  
       ____________________________________________________ 
       Mayor 

 
 
 



















Norwood Young America 
 

310 Elm Street West PO Box 59 – Norwood Young America, MN  55368 – (952)467-1800 – www.cityofnya.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
TO: Mayor Lagergren and Council Members 
 
FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 
 
DATE: April 24, 2017 
 
RE: Resignation of Jason Kloempken; authorization to post Public Service Technician position 
 

 
On April 14, 2017, Public Service Technician Jason Kloempken submitted a letter of resignation.  Jason 
started working for the City of Norwood Young America in September 2013.  We wish Jason the best in his 
future endeavors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
A motion to accept the resignation of Public Service Technician Jason Kloempken. 
 
AND 
 
A motion to post the Public Service Technician position. 

 



Norwood Young America 
 

310 Elm Street West PO Box 59 – Norwood Young America, MN  55368 – (952)467-1800 – www.cityofnya.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
TO: Mayor Lagergren and Council Members 
 
FROM: Kelly Hayes, City Clerk / Treasurer 
 
DATE: April 24, 2017 
 
RE: Street Closing Request – Tina Diedrick 
 

 
Resident Tina Diedrick at 223 Franklin Street N is requesting to close the street in front of her house for a 
graduation party on Friday, May 19, 2017, from noon until midnight.  The street closure would be on 
Franklin Street North from Railroad Street West to Hill Street West (as indicated in the darkened area 
below).  Ms. Diedrick has contacted and received approval from all of the residents on this street that 
would be affected by the closure. 
 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
A motion to approve closing Franklin Street from Railroad St W to Hill Street W on Friday, May 19, 2017 
from noon until midnight. 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner 
 
Date: April 24, 2017 
 
Re: Public Hearing: Vacation of portion of Liberty Street (Wigfield, Teply, Hurst)  
 

 
Applicants:   Andy and Julie Wigfield (Purchaser) 
    Seth Teply (Property Owner) 
    Daniel Hurst (Property Owner) 
     
Subject Property Address: 524 Elm Street West 
 
Legal Description: See Attached 
 
Property ID: 580500720 
 
Zoning Class: R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential 
 
Request: Public Hearing to consider vacation of a portion of an unimproved street (Liberty 

Street) right of way to accommodate an existing attached garage constructed in 
the ROW decades previously. 

 
BACKGROUND 
On March 27th the City Council examined a petition for vacation of a portion of unimproved Liberty Street between 
Elm Street West and the railway in the 500 Block of Elm Street West. The Council called for a public hearing to 
consider the matter after petition examination.  
 
Petitioners for partial vacation are the holder of a purchase agreement and the fee owners at 524 Elm Street West 
and adjacent property owners Peter and Michelle Luskey and Marilyn Franck. The request relates to a partial 
vacation of the eastern half of Liberty Street. The partial vacation would accommodate an attached garage which 
is located in the public right of way. 
 
Public notice was posted, mailed to area property owners and private utilities, and published in the NYA Times 
twice.  The Planning Commission considered the matter at a meeting April 18th and recommended approval. The 
City Engineer and City Attorney have examined the request. The City Attorney has drafted a resolution for 
consideration.   
 
Please find attached the following: 

1. A petition for partial street vacation 
2. A survey and legal description of the proposed vacation 
3. An area map of the subject property 
4. Review comments – City Engineer 
5. Comment letter Xcel Energy 
6. Draft minutes from the PC meeting  
7. Resolution as drafted by City Attorney Jay Squires  

 



2 
 

Representations by Applicant: 
 

• The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Progress Street (scalene triangle in shape) is 
proposed. 

• A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to demonstrate a proposed partial 
street vacation. 

• The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for vacation is 17 feet (portion of 
eastern half of public street ROW and western boundary of subject lot).    

• The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago. 
• Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request or removal of the attached 

garage. 
• The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the property that lots in the 500 block 

of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not 
perpendicular to the street. As a result encroachment of personal property improvements on non-fee owner 
properties are replicated throughout the vicinity.  

 
EXAMINATION OF REQUEST 
Norwood Young America is a statutory city, therefore, state statute governs vacation of easements. Although the 
request is for a partial street right of way easement vacation, the statutory process is the same. Planning 
Commission consideration is not part of the required vacation review process but was requested. The City Council 
is responsible for consideration of easement vacation requests.  
 
The City Engineer has reviewed the request and notes: 
 

1. To the best of his knowledge no public utilities are located in the subject area. 
2. Private utilities could be located in the subject area that are unknown by the City at this time (please note 

notices mailed). 
3. Property to the North is privately owned. Private development “Hidden Glen” was proposed but never 

materialized. City Engineer recommends access to the private property be retained. At this time West Street 
and Liberty Street provide access with West Street perhaps being the most viable. There is a potential 
water main looping may need to occupy the Liberty Street right of way. Adequate remaining width appears 
to be able to accommodate said looping.  

4. The proposed vacation results in narrowing of the right of way. If an improved street is necessary in the 
future, the boulevard will be smaller if a 34’ paved roadway is envisioned. Alternately a roadway of less 
width is possible. 

5. Retaining a drainage/utility easement over the vacated portion of the street, except for where the detached 
garage is located, is recommended.  

6. Miscellaneous adjustments to the legal description were recommended.  
 
The City has received correspondence from Xcel Energy (attached). Xcel recommends retaining a utility easement 
across the vacated portion.  
 
The Planning Commission considered the item at an April 18th meeting and recommended approval (minutes 
attached). 
 
City Attorney Squires has drafted a resolution for consideration.  
 
ACTION 
The Council is to hold the public hearing. Following the hearing the Council is to take action on the partial 
vacation request. 
 
  



3 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 













Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 3/7/2017

Liberty Street

Elm Street



 

H:\NOYA\C1235710 - misc\524 Elm St Liberty St Vacation\Liberty Street Vacation-524 Elm St Review Memo 4-10-17.docx 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: 4/10/17  

To: Cynthia Smith Strack 

From: John Swanson 

Subject: Liberty Street Partial Vacation – 524 Elm Street 

 City of Norwood Young America, MN 

  

 

 
Ms. Smith Strack: 

 

We have looked at the information provided for the above referenced partial street vacation from 

an engineering perspective. We offer the following comments for your consideration: 

1) To the best of our knowledge, no public utilities are located within the subject area of 

Liberty Street. 

2) There is a potential that private utilities could be present in the subject area that are 

unknown by us or the City at this time.  

3) The property to the north is privately owned.  A proposed development on this property 

was presented to the City in 2007, known as “Hidden Glen”.  That development proposal 

never materialized.  We offer the following considerations: 

a. A viable access to the “Hidden Glen” property should be maintained.  West Street 

and Liberty Street provide that access.  That being said, one access is likely 

acceptable for the property due to the minimal number of units the property can 

accommodate.  West Street appears to be the most viable location for singular 

access to this property, based on existing utilities and topography.  In addition, the 

previous development plans submitted to the City indicated West Street as the 

proposed primary access. 

b. Sewer sanitary service to this property is intended to go north to Railroad Street. 

c. Storm sewer discharge is to the north and east. 

d. There is a potential that watermain looping along Liberty Street may be required.  

The proposed vacation area appears to maintain adequate Right of Way space for 

future watermain installation should it become necessary. 

 

 

 



Name: Cynthia Smith Strack 

Date: 4/10/17 

Page: 2 

 

 

 

 

4) The proposed vacation area results in a narrowing of the existing Right of Way to 

approximately 49 feet, at the north end of the lot.  In the event that it became necessary to 

construct a standard 34 foot wide street on Liberty Street, the boulevard area would be 

approximately 7.5 feet on each side, which is potentially closer than ideal to existing 

structures.  Alternative street widths can be evaluated should it become necessary.  From 

an engineering perspective, the resulting 49 foot Right of Way width appears to be 

acceptable in this instance. 

 

5) In general, from an engineering perspective, it is preferred to maintain a drainage and 

utility easement encumbering any vacated Right of Way in the event that existing 

unknown public or private utilities exist in the vacated area, or it becomes necessary to 

extend public improvements within the vacated area.   

 

Considering the size, configuration and location of the proposed vacation, it appears 

maintaining an easement encumbering the entire vacated area is not necessary, from an 

engineering perspective.   

 

It may be prudent to consider maintaining a 5 foot wide drainage and utility easement 

along the newly created east Right of Way line (west lot line), from the north line of Elm 

Street to the north line of the subject lot. 

 

Considering the above it appears the proposed partial vacation is acceptable from an engineering 

perspective. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Page 9 of 12 
 

Commission wanted to remove any reference to disorderly conduct, then that suggestion 
should be made. Strack noted she would not recommend going to public hearing if changes 
are pending.  
 
Kemp suggested allowing a rental property owner to propose their own management plan 
or use the sample created by the City.  
 
The Commission reached consensus to continue discussion at the next meeting.  

 
 
7. Old Business. 
 

A. Partial Vacation of Liberty Street: 524 Elm Street West.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack stated the City Council has requested input from the Planning Commission 
regarding vacation of a 1,054 sf portion of unimproved Liberty Street in the 500 Block of 
West Elm Street. A similar issue was heard in 2015 in the same block. If approved the 
vacation would allow an existing detached garage to remain in its present location. The 
City Council will be holding a public hearing on the request on April 24th.  
 
Petitioners for partial vacation are the holder of a purchase agreement and the fee owners 
at 524 Elm Street West and adjacent property owners Peter and Michelle Luskey and 
Marilyn Franck. The request relates to a partial vacation of the eastern half of Liberty 
Street. The partial vacation would accommodate an attached garage which is located in 
the public right of way. 
 
Strack stated the Applicant’s represented:  

 
• The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Liberty Street (scalene 

triangle in shape) is proposed. 
• A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to 

demonstrate a proposed partial street vacation. 
• The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for 

vacation is 17 feet (portion of eastern half of public street ROW and western 
boundary of subject lot).    

• The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago. 
• Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request 

or removal of the attached garage. 
• The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the 

property that lots in the 500 block of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular 
to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not perpendicular to the street. As 
a result encroachment of personal property improvements on non-fee owner 
properties are replicated throughout the vicinity.  

 



Page 10 of 12 
 

Strack noted Norwood Young America is a statutory city, therefore, state statute governs 
vacation of easements. Although the request is for a partial street right of way easement 
vacation, the statutory process is the same. The City Council is responsible for 
consideration of easement vacation requests.  

 
The City Engineer has reviewed the request and notes: 

 
1. To the best of his knowledge no public utilities are located in the subject area. 
2. Private utilities could be located in the subject area that are unknown by the 

City at this time (please note notices mailed). 
3. Property to the North is privately owned. Private development “Hidden Glen” 

was proposed but never materialized. City Engineer recommends access to the 
private property be retained. At this time West Street and Liberty Street provide 
access with West Street perhaps being the most viable. There is a potential 
water main looping may need to occupy the Liberty Street right of way. 
Adequate remaining width appears to be able to accommodate said looping.  

4. The proposed vacation results in narrowing of the right of way. If an improved 
street is necessary in the future, the boulevard will be smaller if a 34’ paved 
roadway is envisioned. Alternately a roadway of less width is possible. 

5. Retaining a drainage/utility easement (5’) along the newly created lot line is 
recommended.  
 

The City has received correspondence from Xcel Energy. Xcel recommends retaining a 
utility easement across the vacated portion.  

 
Strack stated City Attorney Jay Squires will be drafting an easement and resolution for 
consideration by the City Council on April 24th. If approved, presumably a quit claim deed 
would be drafted to convey property to the Applicant.  
 
Discussion regarding extent of Liberty Street proposed for vacation and access to the 
“Hidden Glen” property occurred.   
 
Motion – Hoernemann, Second Kemp, to recommend the Council approve the proposed 
partial vacation of Liberty Street. Motion carried 4-0.  

 
Strack noted agenda item 5.B. had been inadvertently skipped. Heher introduced the agenda 
item relating to appointment of a liaison from the Planning Commission to the EDC. 
Commissioners agreed to delay appointment of a liaison until additional members were 
appointed to the PC.  
 
B. Pylon Signs in the RC-1 District.  

 
Heher introduced the agenda item.  
 
Strack noted the City has received an inquiry regarding maximum sign area for pylon signs 
in the RC-1 District adjacent to Railroad Street. The request involves adding on to an 



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-11 

A RESOLUTION VACATING A PORTION OF LIBERTY STREET 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA, 
MINNESOTA DOES HERERBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

WHEREAS, the City was presented with a petition to vacate a portion of Liberty Street 
as described in Exhibit A.  

WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the vacation of such road was held on the 24th 
day of April, 2017, before the City Council in the City Hall at 6:00 p.m. after due 
published and posted notice had been given, as well as personal mailed notice to all 
affected property owners by the City Clerk on the 3rd day of April, 2017 and all interested 
and affected persons were given an opportunity to voice their concerns and be heard; and 

WHEREAS, any person, corporation or public body owner or controlling easements 
contained upon the property vacated, reserves the right to continue maintaining the same 
or to enter upon such way or portion thereof vacated to maintain, repair, replace or 
otherwise attend thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the council in its discretion has determined that the vacation will benefit the 
public interest because the road has not been used as a public road for many years, and 
vacation of the road will conform property lines to existing uses in the area; and 

WHEREAS, four-fifths of all members of the City Council concur in this resolution; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
HANOVER, COUNTY OF WRIGHT MINNESOTA, that the portion of Liberty  
Street described in Exhibit A is hereby vacated, subject to the City’s retention of a 
drainage and utility purposes easement as described in Exhibit B.  

 

Adopted by the Council this 24th day of April 2017.  

 

      
Mayor      

Attested by: 

___________________________ 
Clerk 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council 

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner 
 
Date: April 24, 2017 
 
Re: Ordinance Rezoning 120 Morse Street North C-3 to R-3  
    

 
Applicant:   Suman Thotakura – Property Owner  
   
Subject Property Address: 120 Morse Street North 
 
Legal Description: AS SURVEYED P/O FORMER RR R-O-W SITUATED IN NW1/4 DESC AS: BEG AT 

NW CORN BLK 6 CITY OF NORWOOD, TH N ALONG E LINE MORSE ST 149.85' 
TH S89*E 354.53' TO WLY LINE FRANKLIN ST TH S ON W LINE FRANKLIN ST 
149.87' TO NE CORN BLK 6 TH N89*W ON N LINE BLK 6 355.8 OF TRACT DESC 
AS: P/O FORMER RR R-O-W IN NW1/4 SECT 14: BEG AT NW CORN OF BLK 6 
CITY OF NORWOOD TH N ALONG E LINE OF MORSE ST 149.85' TH S89*E 354.53' 
TO WLY LINE OF FRANKLIN ST TH S ON W LINE OF FRANKLIN ST 149.87' TO NE 
CORN OF BLK 6 TH N89*W ON N LINE 

 
Property ID: 580145250 
 
Zoning Class: C-3 Downtown District 
 
Request: Consider Ordinance Rezoning to R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential 

District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
The residential structure at 120 Morse Street North is currently non-homestead and renter occupied. Rental 
housing as a principal use of the entire dwelling is not an allowed use in the C-3 Downtown District (current 
zoning). 
 
Lisa Mosley (Broker) and Suman Thotakura (Property Owner) have applied for rezoning of the subject parcel 
to R-3, Medium Density Mixed Residential District.   
 
Rezoning was an option suggested by City Administrator Helget in a compliance letter after he became the 
property was being rented. After receiving the correspondence and having discussions with staff, Ms. Mosley 
applied for rezoning on behalf of her client, Mr. Thotakura. Both have signed the attached application.  
 
 
PC RECOMMENDATION  
The Applicant has petitioned for rezoning as R-3 Residential. R-3 zoning abuts the subject parcel to the east 
and south; therefore, the rezoning will not constitute “spot zoning”.  The code does not specify review criteria 
or required standards for approving a rezoning request. The Code does require specific adoption criteria – i.e. 
a two-thirds super majority vote by the City Council. 
 
The Code standard is as follows: 
 

Subd. 1 Adoption. This chapter may be amended, changed or altered only by a favorable 
(two-thirds) majority vote of all members of the City Council, and only after a public hearing 
has been duly advertised and held by the Planning Commission.  

 
DISCUSSION: This Section applies to rezoning and text amendments to the land use code. 
The applicable standard doesn’t include minimum review criteria. The Applicant is requesting 
the property be rezoned to R-3 Residential to reflect the fact the structure is a dwelling (as 
opposed to a commercial structure) and to reflect the current and recent use of the structure.  

 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the matter on April 18th following hearing notice publication, 
posting, and distribution to property owners within 350 feet of the subject parcel.  
 
Following the hearing and discussion the Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the 
rezoning request. Please find draft meeting minutes attached for consideration.  
 
ACTION: 
The City Council is to consider the rezoning request and approve or deny the attached Ordinance.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Memo 
Draft Rezoning Ordinance 
Application 
Map 
Draft PC Minutes  



















Carver County GIS, 2014 P ictometry International

²
This map was created using Carver County's Geographic Information Systems (GIS), it is  a compilation of information and data from various City, County, State, and Federal offices. This map is not a surveyed
or legally recorded map and is intended to be used as a reference. Carver County is not responsible for any  inaccuracies contained herein.

Map Date: 3/26/2017



Page 3 of 12 
 

of the building when he and his wife purchased the building. Werneke noted parking in the 
back was established prior to purchase as well. Werneke stated he didn’t know what the 
building looked like when it was a coffee shop, only that when he purchased it there was a 
clothing store in the front.  
 
Heher asked how the proposed Ordinance related to the Comprehensive Plan. Strack noted 
it was consistent with mixed use building occupancies in the Downtown areas.  
 
Grundahl inquired as to whether a rezoning process was a potential option. Strack opined 
rezoning would be problematic as it is surrounded by C-3 District. Spot zoning has been 
struck down by courts. She further opined it was difficult to envision the area as a highway 
commercial district. Strack opined it was appropriately zoned as C-3 allows for residential 
on second floor. She stated she didn’t detect a measurable difference between first floor 
behind commercial and second story residential. Finally she stated that any other type of 
residential, for example single family, is grandfathered in.  
 
Grundahl asked Administrator Helget for an opinion on how the current discussion related 
to a scheduled joint meeting discussion on Downtowns. Helget noted he supported the 
Ordinance, he opined it wouldn’t directly impact scheduled joint meeting discussion. 
Helget opined the proposed Ordinance protects integrity of storefronts in Downtown 
Districts.  
 
Grundahl asked Werneke whether or not he was able to meet the proposed conditions. 
Werneke confirmed he met proposed conditions. 
 
Heher asked for other comments for or against the proposed Ordinance.   

 
Motion – Kemp, Second Grundahl to close the public hearing at 7:25 p.m. Approved 4-0.  
 
 

B. Rezoning C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential – 120 Morse 
Street North.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:26 p.m.   
 
Strack stated a residential structure at 120 Morse Street North is currently non-homestead 
and renter occupied. Rental housing as a principal use of the entire dwelling is not an 
allowed use in the C-3 Downtown District which is the current applicable zoning 
classification. 

 
Lisa Mosley (Broker) and Suman Thotakura (Property Owner) have applied for rezoning 
of the subject parcel to R-3, Medium Density Mixed Residential District.   

 
Rezoning was an option suggested by City Administrator Helget in a compliance letter 
after he became the property was being rented. After receiving the correspondence and 



Page 4 of 12 
 

having discussions with staff, Ms. Mosley applied for rezoning on behalf of her client, 
Mr. Thotakura. Both have signed the application included in the PC meeting packet.  

 
The Applicant has petitioned for rezoning as R-3 Residential. R-3 zoning abuts the subject 
parcel to the east and south; therefore, the rezoning will not constitute “spot zoning”.  The 
code does not specify review criteria or required standards for approving a rezoning 
request. The Code does require specific adoption criteria, that is, a two-thirds super 
majority vote by the City Council. 

 
Strack stated the Applicant is requesting the property be rezoned to R-3 Residential to 
reflect the fact the structure is a dwelling as opposed to a commercial structure and to 
reflect the current and recent use of the structure. 
 
A notice of public hearing has been posted, published, and mailed as required by law. At 
this time no oral or written comment for or against the request have been received.  
 
Helget noted he received one call for information but the individual requesting input 
didn’t have a concern with the proposed rezoning.  

 
Grundahl stated that at the previous meeting he expressed concern regarding about 
mailed notices. He stated he did not receive a notice for this rezoning either, but that he 
was the caretaker and not the owner of property in the vicinity. He further noted his shop 
was likely in the mailed notice area, but he was not the owner of the building.  

 
Grundahl asked Strack to identify where R-3 zoning was adjacent to the subject parcel. 
Strack explained.  
 
Grundahl asked Lisa Mosley to identify the property owner. Mosley noted Suman 
Thotakura is the fee owner of the property.  

 
Kemp stated she didn’t have an issue with the proposed rezoning. She opined occupied 
properties were favorable to vacant buildings.  

 
Grundahl asked Mosley if any other development was envisioned on the property. 
Mosley stated the owner had considered commercial space for the building but ultimately 
determined too much existing vacant commercial property was present in the City.  

 
Motion – Kemp, second Hoernemann to close the public hearing at 7:38 p.m. Approved 4-
0.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 12 
 

draft Ordinance.  
 
Heher voiced support for the Ordinance.  
 
Motion – Hoernemann, Second Kemp to recommend approval of the ordinance allowing 
residential uses on the first floor of buildings in the C-3 District providing performance 
standards were achieved. Approved 4-0.  

 
 

B. Rezoning C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential – 120 Morse 
Street North.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack referenced a draft ordinance included in the packet rezoning property at 120 
Morse Street North from C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed 
Residential District. She noted the subject property was an existing non-homestead 
residential dwelling. She noted the subject parcel was adjacent to existing R-3 uses 
meaning spot zoning was not an issue with this request.  
 
Kemp supported the rezoning request. She noted she’s always considered the subject 
parcel as a residential property not a commercial property.  
 
Grundahl stated he remembered when it was a business, a laundromat. He opined that 
when that use ceased people remodeled it to residential thereby changing use without 
consideration of zoning.  
 
Kemp asked Helget whether or not zoning was considered when building permit 
applications were filed. Helget noted he told the Applicant several times the property 
could not be used for residential rental. He noted he shared that information with the 
current property owner. He stated he communicated on several occasions that a 
residential use was not allowed at the site. Helget stated the Commission should consider 
whether or not the property will ever be used for commercial purposes.  
 
Kemp noted the subject property has been vacant for several years. She stated it hasn’t 
been a business for at least ten years.  
 
Hoernemann stated the remainder of the subject lot is not easily buildable.  
 
Kemp supported rezoning. Hoernemann agreed.  
 
Heher stated his concern is that the property is not likely to be commercial in the future; 
with that he supported residential zoning. He then stated he would like to make sure the 
property is kept up and clean and orderly.  
 
Grundahl stated he would not make a motion regarding the request.  



Page 7 of 12 
 

 
Motion – Kemp, second Hoernemann to recommend the City Council approve an 
Ordinance rezoning 120 Morse Street North from C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium 
Density Mixed Residential District. Kemp, Hoernemann, and Heher voted in favor; 
Grundahl opposed.  

 
 
6. Old Business. 
 

A. Rental Code Update.  
 

Heher introduced the agenda item. 
  
Strack noted the Commission called for a work session on the draft rental code update 
following input from landlords at the February 22nd meeting. Discussion at the work 
session primarily centered on tenant registration and disorderly conduct draft provisions. 
At the meeting the Commission received feedback from the public which favored conduct 
standards addressed in lease agreements and not code. A sample management plan was 
presented to the Commission and viewed favorably.  
 
Following the meeting the information was forwarded to Zachary Cronen at the City 
Attorney’s Office (original drafter of proposed changes). Cronen has suggested 
replacement language and developed management plan criteria.  
 
Strack noted included in the packet was an updated rental code. She noted the draft code 
previous agreed upon updates were illustrated in yellow highlight; those made following 
the work session were connoted with blue highlight.  
 
She reviewed proposed changes:  

 
Made after the work session: 

 
1. The definition of ‘rent’ was updated by removing the last sentence.  

 
2. Subd. 10 relating to tenant registry was updated by removing the last sentence 

which required posting of tenant registry near building entry. 
 

3. Subd. 14 relating to disorderly conduct was removed and replaced with 
enabling language referencing a required management plan.  
 

Made prior to the work session: 
 

1. Language included in the ‘scope’ related to “direct family members” has been 
removed. 
 

2. A reference to ‘overcrowding” as a ‘nuisance’ has been removed. 



CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA 
ORDINANCE NO. 286 

 
AN ORDINANCE REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTY FROM C-3, DOWNTOWN 
DISTRICT TO R-3, MEDIUM DENSITY MIXED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 
 

I. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA, 
MINNESOTA HEREBY ORDAINS: 
 

II. THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS HEREBY REZONED FROM 
C-3 DOWNTOWN DISTRICT TO R-3 MEDIUM DENSITY MIXED 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: 

 
The Property addressed as 120 Morse Street North: 
 
AS SURVEYED P/O FORMER RR R-O-W SITUATED IN NW1/4 DESC AS: BEG AT 
NW CORN BLK 6 CITY OF NORWOOD, TH N ALONG E LINE MORSE ST 149.85' TH 
S89*E 354.53' TO WLY LINE FRANKLIN ST TH S ON W LINE FRANKLIN ST 149.87' 
TO NE CORN BLK 6 TH N89*W ON N LINE BLK 6 355.8 OF TRACT DESC AS: P/O 
FORMER RR R-O-W IN NW1/4 SECT 14: BEG AT NW CORN OF BLK 6 CITY OF 
NORWOOD TH N ALONG E LINE OF MORSE ST 149.85' TH S89*E 354.53' TO WLY 
LINE OF FRANKLIN ST TH S ON W LINE OF FRANKLIN ST 149.87' TO NE CORN OF 
BLK 6 TH N89*W ON N LINE 
 

 

III. EFFECTIVE DATE: THIS ORDINANCE IS EFFECTIVE UPON ITS 
ADOPTION AND PUBLICATION AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW.  

 
 

Adopted by the City of Norwood Young America on the 24th day of April, 2017. 
 
 
 
             
       Carol Lagergren, Mayor  
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Kelly Hayes, City Clerk-Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
( S E A L ) 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Lagergren 
 Members of the City Council  

Administrator Helget 
 
From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner 
 
Date: April 24, 2017 
 
Re: Ordinance to Allow First Floor Residential in the C-3 Downtown Districts   
 

 
BACKGROUND 
City Administrator Helget has become aware of a first floor residential use at 116 Union Street North. In 
March he corresponded with the property owner, Mr. Mike Werneke. Administrator Helget’s compliance letter 
noted a path to remedy the prohibited use could be to file for a code amendment to allow first floor residential 
uses in certain situations. After receiving the correspondence and having discussions with staff, Mr. Werneke 
applied for a code amendment. Mr. Werneke is to be present for the hearing. 
 
Please find attached a draft Ordinance to allow limited residential uses on the first floor in the C-3 Downtown 
District. Said use is proposed as a permitted use provided the following standards are achieved: 
 

1. The residential use does not compose greater than fifty (50) percent of the ground floor area; 
2. A storefront is retained in the front of the building adjacent to the public streets; 
3. A separate entry is provided for the residential use; 
4. The residential use is not adversely impacted by the adjoining commercial use in terms of hours of 

operation prior to 7 a.m. or after 9 p.m., production of odor or noise, or increased traffic generation; 
5. Off-street parking is provided for the residential use.      

 
The proposed code amendment is not only a means to rectify a non-compliant use, but also allows increased 
flexibility in the Downtowns wherein vacant buildings are reoccurring issues. The code amendment intends to 
keep the appearance of storefronts (large windows, welcoming entries, etc) and avoid reducing window/door 
opaqueness which often accompanies residential uses at ground level.  
 
PC RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission held the public hearing on the proposed ordinance amendment. Following hearing 
and discussion, the Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to approve the proposed 
Ordinance. Draft minutes from the meeting are attached.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Memo 
Proposed Ordinance 
Application 
Draft PC Minutes  
 





Page 1 of 12 
 

Norwood Young America 
 Planning Commission Minutes 

April 18, 2017 
 
 
Present:  Commissioners Bill Grundahl, Craig Heher, Cassandra Kemp, and JR 

Hoernemann. 
 
Absent:  Lagergren. 
 
Staff:  City Administrator Steve Helget and Planning Consultant Cynthia Smith Strack. 
 
Others:  Mike Werneke and Lisa Mosley.  
 
1.  Call to Order. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Heher at 7:04 pm. All present stood for the Pledge of 
Allegiance.  
 
2.  Adoption of Agenda. 
 
Chairperson Heher introduced the agenda. Staff requested the addition of item 6.D. relating to 
signs in the RC-1 District and consideration of reordering of agenda to allow public hearing 
applicants to have items acted on in a timely fashion.  
 
Motion – Kemp, Second Hoernemann to approve the agenda with the addition of item 6.D. and 
reordering of business items related to public hearing items. The revised agenda was approved 4-
0.  
 
3.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting March 21, 2017. 
 
Heher introduced the minutes from the March 21, 2017 regular meeting. 
 
Motion – Kemp to approve March 21, 2017 regular meeting minutes. Second by Grundahl. With 
all in favor the minutes were approved 4-0.  
 
4.  Public Hearings.  
 
Heher addressed the audience regarding the public hearing process.  

 
A. Ordinance Amendment Relating to First Floor Residential Uses in the C-3 Downtown 

Districts.  
 

Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:10 p.m. Heher 
explained the public hearing process.  
 



Page 2 of 12 
 

Strack stated the Commission has had residential uses in the Downtown District on their 
radar before, principally as a means of assisting building owners in utilizing space and 
cash-flowing buildings.  
 
Recently, City Administrator Helget became aware of a first floor residential use at 116 
Union Street North. In March, Administrator Helget corresponded with the property 
owner, Mr. Mike Werneke. The Administrator’s compliance letter noted a path to remedy 
the prohibited use could be to file for a code amendment to allow first floor residential 
uses in certain situations. After receiving the correspondence and having discussions with 
staff, Mr. Werneke applied for a code amendment. Strack noted Mr. Werneke was 
present in the audience. 

 
Strack referenced a draft Ordinance included in the packet. The draft ordinance provides 
for limited residential uses on the first floor in the C-3 Downtown District. The 
Ordinance envisions first floor residential uses as permitted uses provided several 
standards are achieved: 

 
1. The residential use does not compose greater than fifty (50) percent of the ground 

floor area; 
2. A storefront is retained in the front of the building adjacent to public streets; 
3. A separate entry is provided for the residential use; 
4. The residential use is not adversely impacted by the adjoining commercial use in 

terms of hours of operation prior to 7 a.m. or after 9 p.m., production of odor or 
noise, or increased traffic generation; 

5. Off-street parking is provided for the residential use.      
 

Strack opined the proposed code amendment is not only a means to rectify a non-
compliant use, but also allows increased flexibility in the Downtown District wherein 
vacant buildings are reoccurring issues. The code amendment intends to keep the 
appearance of storefronts (large windows, welcoming entries, etc) and avoid reducing 
window/door opaqueness which often accompanies residential uses at ground level.  
 
Strack noted a public hearing notice had been published. No comments for or against the 
proposed Ordinance have been received.  
 
Mike Werneke addressed the Commission. Werneke noted he bought the building with an 
existing renter in a first floor apartment. He noted he didn’t intend to operate a non-
conforming use. Werneke also stated he has a salon going to go in the storefront. Werneke 
noted the City of St. Peter has similar allowances in their Code for first floor residential 
provided a commercial storefront is retained. 
 
Heher inquired as to where other C-3 Districts were located. Strack noted adjacent to Elm 
Street and by the former City Hall. 
 
Grundahl asked the Property Owner if the building already remodeled when he purchased 
it. Werneke confirmed there was a full kitchen and bath and residential tenant in the back 



Page 3 of 12 
 

of the building when he and his wife purchased the building. Werneke noted parking in the 
back was established prior to purchase as well. Werneke stated he didn’t know what the 
building looked like when it was a coffee shop, only that when he purchased it there was a 
clothing store in the front.  
 
Heher asked how the proposed Ordinance related to the Comprehensive Plan. Strack noted 
it was consistent with mixed use building occupancies in the Downtown areas.  
 
Grundahl inquired as to whether a rezoning process was a potential option. Strack opined 
rezoning would be problematic as it is surrounded by C-3 District. Spot zoning has been 
struck down by courts. She further opined it was difficult to envision the area as a highway 
commercial district. Strack opined it was appropriately zoned as C-3 allows for residential 
on second floor. She stated she didn’t detect a measurable difference between first floor 
behind commercial and second story residential. Finally she stated that any other type of 
residential, for example single family, is grandfathered in.  
 
Grundahl asked Administrator Helget for an opinion on how the current discussion related 
to a scheduled joint meeting discussion on Downtowns. Helget noted he supported the 
Ordinance, he opined it wouldn’t directly impact scheduled joint meeting discussion. 
Helget opined the proposed Ordinance protects integrity of storefronts in Downtown 
Districts.  
 
Grundahl asked Werneke whether or not he was able to meet the proposed conditions. 
Werneke confirmed he met proposed conditions. 
 
Heher asked for other comments for or against the proposed Ordinance.   

 
Motion – Kemp, Second Grundahl to close the public hearing at 7:25 p.m. Approved 4-0.  
 
 

B. Rezoning C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential – 120 Morse 
Street North.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing at 7:26 p.m.   
 
Strack stated a residential structure at 120 Morse Street North is currently non-homestead 
and renter occupied. Rental housing as a principal use of the entire dwelling is not an 
allowed use in the C-3 Downtown District which is the current applicable zoning 
classification. 

 
Lisa Mosley (Broker) and Suman Thotakura (Property Owner) have applied for rezoning 
of the subject parcel to R-3, Medium Density Mixed Residential District.   

 
Rezoning was an option suggested by City Administrator Helget in a compliance letter 
after he became the property was being rented. After receiving the correspondence and 



Page 5 of 12 
 

5. New Business. 
 

A. Ordinance Amendment Relating to First Floor Residential Uses in the C-3 Downtown 
Districts.  

 
Heher introduced the agenda item.  
 
Strack noted the Applicant was in attendance. She noted several rural communities similar 
in size and geographic location allow first floor residential uses in Central Business 
Districts providing storefronts are retained adjacent to public streets. She noted with the 
considerations suggested, she recommended approval of the Ordinance. 
 
Strack then alluded to results of survey conducted in advance of a planned joint work 
session. One question related to the most important task to undertake in the Downtown 
areas. All responding said filling vacant structures is utmost importance. The proposed 
Ordinance would assist in filling portions of vacant building assist in cashflow for building 
owners.  
 
Kemp stated she supported the draft Ordinance.  
 
Grundahl stated he was on the fence about the proposed Ordinance. He opined previous 
elected and appointed officials established existing zoning rules after deliberating 
considerably. He opined they opted not to include residential in the rear of first floor 
structures and that should be considered.  
 
Kemp stated more vacant buildings were now existing, she questioned whether those 
establishing the existing rules would view things differently at this time. She opined 
occupied buildings lead to better building maintenance and further investment in buildings. 
She stated mixed use buildings were favorable revenue sources for cities.  
 
Heher opined retailers are struggling and closing due to competition from online retailers.  
 
Kemp agreed noting all communities are challenged to keep storefronts occupied.  
 
Heher opined shopping trends are changing.  
 
Grundahl asked Commissioners to consider what would be appropriate if commuter rail 
was extended to the City. Hoernemann noted he didn’t see that as a concern at this time.  
 
Kemp opined the amendment would help building owners increase revenue and fill vacant 
spaces.  
 
Heher asked Hoernemann for his thoughts. Hoernemann voiced support for the draft 
Ordinance.  
 
Heher asked Grundahl for his thoughts on the issue. Grundahl expressed support for the 



Page 6 of 12 
 

draft Ordinance.  
 
Heher voiced support for the Ordinance.  
 
Motion – Hoernemann, Second Kemp to recommend approval of the ordinance allowing 
residential uses on the first floor of buildings in the C-3 District providing performance 
standards were achieved. Approved 4-0.  

 
 

B. Rezoning C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed Residential – 120 Morse 
Street North.  
 
Heher introduced the agenda item. 
 
Strack referenced a draft ordinance included in the packet rezoning property at 120 
Morse Street North from C-3 Downtown District to R-3 Medium Density Mixed 
Residential District. She noted the subject property was an existing non-homestead 
residential dwelling. She noted the subject parcel was adjacent to existing R-3 uses 
meaning spot zoning was not an issue with this request.  
 
Kemp supported the rezoning request. She noted she’s always considered the subject 
parcel as a residential property not a commercial property.  
 
Grundahl stated he remembered when it was a business, a laundromat. He opined that 
when that use ceased people remodeled it to residential thereby changing use without 
consideration of zoning.  
 
Kemp asked Helget whether or not zoning was considered when building permit 
applications were filed. Helget noted he told the Applicant several times the property 
could not be used for residential rental. He noted he shared that information with the 
current property owner. He stated he communicated on several occasions that a 
residential use was not allowed at the site. Helget stated the Commission should consider 
whether or not the property will ever be used for commercial purposes.  
 
Kemp noted the subject property has been vacant for several years. She stated it hasn’t 
been a business for at least ten years.  
 
Hoernemann stated the remainder of the subject lot is not easily buildable.  
 
Kemp supported rezoning. Hoernemann agreed.  
 
Heher stated his concern is that the property is not likely to be commercial in the future; 
with that he supported residential zoning. He then stated he would like to make sure the 
property is kept up and clean and orderly.  
 
Grundahl stated he would not make a motion regarding the request.  



 

1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA 

ORDINANCE NO. 287 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12 OF THE CITY CODE BY 

AMENDING SECTION 1230.10, SUBD. 2 BY ADDING SUBP. (L) TO PROVIDE 

FOR LIMITED RESIDENTIAL USES ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF 

COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES IN THE C-3, DOWNTOWN DISTRICT. 

 

I. THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORWOOD YOUNG AMERICA, 

CARVER COUNTY, MINNESOTA TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC SAFETY, 

HEALTH, AND WELFARE, HEREBY ORDAINS: 

 

II. SECTION 1230.10, SUBD. 2 RELATING TO PERMITTED USES IN THE C-3, 

DOWNTOWN DISTRICT SHALL BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Subd. 2 Permitted Uses. The following uses are permitted in the Downtown District: 

 

A. General commercial office space; 

B. Professional Services, such as medical/dental clinics, law offices, and accounting 

offices;  

C. Finance, Insurance and Real Estate; 

D. Personal or Business Services, such as laundry, barber, shoe repair, beauty salons, 

photography studios and physical fitness centers less than 5,000 square feet; 

E. Public facilities serving all or portions of the city, such as municipal offices, library, 

post office; 

F. Retail Trade, such as grocery, hardware, drug, clothing, appliance and furniture stores; 

G. Dwelling units, if located above the street level in nonresidential structures. 

H. Specialty Shops, such as book and stationary stores, candy stores, ice cream parlors, 

tobacco, coffee, gift and florist shops; 

I. Standard restaurants; 

J. On and off-sale liquor establishments; 

K. Public Parks; 

L.  Residential uses on the first floor of commercial structures provided: 

1. The residential use does not compose greater than fifty (50) percent of the 

ground floor area; 

2.  A storefront is retained in the front of the building adjacent to public streets; 

3.  A separate entry is provided for the residential use; 

4. The residential use is not adversely impacted by the adjoining commercial use 

in terms of hours of operation prior to 7:00 a.m. or after 9:00 p.m., production 

of odor or noise, or increased traffic generation; 

5.  Off-street parking is provided for the residential use.      
 

III. EFFECTIVE DATE: THIS ORDINANCE IS EFFECTIVE UPON ITS 

ADOPTION AND PUBLICATION AS PRESCRIBED BY LAW.  
 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

Adopted by the City of Norwood Young America on the 24
th

 day of April, 2017. 

 

 

 

             

       Carol Lagergren, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

 

       

Kelly Hayes, City Clerk-Treasurer 

 

 

 

 

( S E A L ) 


























	NYA17_CC_Packet_LIberty_St_Vacation_04.28.17.pdf
	NYA17_MEM_CC_PH_Liberty_St_Partial_Vacation_APR
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner
	BACKGROUND
	On March 27th the City Council examined a petition for vacation of a portion of unimproved Liberty Street between Elm Street West and the railway in the 500 Block of Elm Street West. The Council called for a public hearing to consider the matter after...
	Petitioners for partial vacation are the holder of a purchase agreement and the fee owners at 524 Elm Street West and adjacent property owners Peter and Michelle Luskey and Marilyn Franck. The request relates to a partial vacation of the eastern half ...
	Public notice was posted, mailed to area property owners and private utilities, and published in the NYA Times twice.  The Planning Commission considered the matter at a meeting April 18th and recommended approval. The City Engineer and City Attorney ...
	Please find attached the following:
	1. A petition for partial street vacation
	2. A survey and legal description of the proposed vacation
	3. An area map of the subject property
	4. Review comments – City Engineer
	5. Comment letter Xcel Energy
	6. Draft minutes from the PC meeting
	7. Resolution as drafted by City Attorney Jay Squires
	Representations by Applicant:
	 The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Progress Street (scalene triangle in shape) is proposed.
	 A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to demonstrate a proposed partial street vacation.
	 The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for vacation is 17 feet (portion of eastern half of public street ROW and western boundary of subject lot).
	 The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago.
	 Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request or removal of the attached garage.
	 The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the property that lots in the 500 block of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not perpendicular to the street. As a result encroa...


	Attachments petition, survey, legal, area map
	NYA17_Attachments__Liberty_Street_Partial_Vacation_Reduced
	Application
	Map


	Swanny's review memo
	LET Xcel Comments
	Draft PC Minutes
	3.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting March 21, 2017.
	 The vacation of an approximate 1,054 sf of unimproved Liberty Street (scalene triangle in shape) is proposed.
	 A certificate of survey has been obtained and the survey has been used to demonstrate a proposed partial street vacation.
	 The furthest point of projection into the unimproved right of way proposed for vacation is 17 feet (portion of eastern half of public street ROW and western boundary of subject lot).
	 The garage was constructed in the public easement decades ago.
	 Clear title to the subject property is not achievable but for the vacation request or removal of the attached garage.
	 The encroachment results from common perception in the vicinity of the property that lots in the 500 block of Elm Street West are oriented perpendicular to Elm Street as opposed to intersecting but not perpendicular to the street. As a result encroa...



	NYA17_CC_Packet_Rezoning_120_Morse_St_04.24.17.pdf
	NYA17_Mem_CC_Rezone_120_Morse_St_N_to_R-3_APR
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner
	The Applicant has petitioned for rezoning as R-3 Residential. R-3 zoning abuts the subject parcel to the east and south; therefore, the rezoning will not constitute “spot zoning”.  The code does not specify review criteria or required standards for ap...
	The Planning Commission held a public hearing on the matter on April 18th following hearing notice publication, posting, and distribution to property owners within 350 feet of the subject parcel.
	Following the hearing and discussion the Planning Commission recommended the City Council approve the rezoning request. Please find draft meeting minutes attached for consideration.
	ACTION:
	The City Council is to consider the rezoning request and approve or deny the attached Ordinance.
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Memo
	Draft Rezoning Ordinance
	Application
	Map


	Application
	Map
	Draft PC minutes
	3.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting March 21, 2017.
	The Applicant has petitioned for rezoning as R-3 Residential. R-3 zoning abuts the subject parcel to the east and south; therefore, the rezoning will not constitute “spot zoning”.  The code does not specify review criteria or required standards for ap...



	NYA17_CC_Packet_Ord_Resid_First_Floor_C-3_04.28.17.pdf
	NYA17_Mem_CC_Resid_First_Floor_C-3_APR
	From: Cynthia Smith Strack, Consulting Planner
	PC RECOMMENDATION:
	The Planning Commission held the public hearing on the proposed ordinance amendment. Following hearing and discussion, the Commission made a recommendation to the City Council to approve the proposed Ordinance. Draft minutes from the meeting are attac...
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Memo
	Proposed Ordinance
	Application
	Draft PC Minutes


	Application
	Draft PC Meeting Minutes
	1.  Call to Order.
	3.  Approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting March 21, 2017.





